
 

 

Agenda - Local Government and Housing Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee room 3 

Meeting date: 13 July 2022 

Meeting time: 08.45

For further information contact: 

Manon George 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddHousing@senedd.wales
------ 

Pre-meeting (08.45 - 09.00)  

 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

(09.00)   

 

2 Inquiry into community assets - evidence session 4: Minister for 

Climate Change and the Minister for Finance and Local 

Government 

(09.00 - 10.15) (Pages 1 - 12)  

Julie James MS, Minister for Climate Change 

Rebecca Evans MS, Minister for Finance and Local Government 

Richard Baker, Deputy Director Land Division, Welsh Government 

Judith Cole, Deputy Director Local Government Finance Policy & 

Sustainability, Welsh Government 

Attached Documents:  

Research Brief 

Paper 1 

3 Papers to note 

(10.15) (Page 13)  

Attached Documents:  

Cover sheet 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



 

 

3.1 Letter from the Finance Committee to all Committee Chairs in relation to the 

Welsh Government Draft Budget 2023-24 

 (Pages 14 - 16)  

Attached Documents:  

Paper 2 

3.2 Written submission from Community Housing Cymru in relation to housing 

Ukrainian refugees 

 (Pages 17 - 18)  

Attached Documents:  

Paper 3 

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 (ix) to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of the meeting 

(10.15)   

 

Break (10.15 - 10.30)  

 

5 Inquiry into community assets - consideration of the evidence 

received under item 2 and key issues 

(10.30 - 11.15) (Pages 19 - 20)  

Attached Documents:  

Key issues 

6 Inquiry into the provision of sites for Gypsy, Roma and Travellers 

- consideration of the draft report 

(11.15 - 12.00) (Pages 21 - 63)  

Attached Documents:  

Draft Report 



 

 

7 Consideration of the forward work programme for the autumn 

term 2022 

(12.00 - 12.30) (Pages 64 - 85)  

Attached Documents:  

Forward work programme 

Annexe 1 

Annexe 2 



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Local Government and Housing Committee 13 July 2022 – Evidence Paper on Community Assets 

1 

Background 

Our Programme for Government is founded on the distinctively Welsh values of 
community, equality and social justice with many of our commitments focused on 
enabling people to thrive in their local areas as well as supporting communities of 
interest.  Supporting co-operative housing, community-led initiatives, and community 
land trusts being one specific commitment. Community buildings and green spaces 
are widely acknowledged as providing an important focus for sustaining communities 
and their well-being.  

Community assets in Wales are acquired for a wide range of reasons and uses, and 
from private owners as well as public bodies. It is also estimated that there are many 
hundreds of assets which are in community ownership and, for a large proportion, 
have been in community ownership for some years, suggesting a maturity to the 
sector in Wales under the existing largely policy based framework.1  

In Wales, communities and community action are at the heart of the Programme for 
Government. This is why we have popular programmes like the Community Facilities 
Programme (CFP) which provides grants to help communities buy, develop and 
improve community assets – buildings and green spaces. The CFP has provided 
over £41m in capital grants to 295 projects across Wales since 2015. We will be 
investing a further £19.5m through the CFP over the next three years.  

Each of these 295 projects represents a well-used and much needed community 
facility. Not all of these assets are community owned, but they are all are run by the 
community, for the community.  

This is why we recently launched a £5m Community Asset Loan Fund, delivered for 
us by the WCVA, complementing CFP by providing long term loans for community 
groups seeking to take ownership of community assets.  

In addition, Third Sector Support Wales which is made up of WCVA and the 19 
county voluntary councils in Wales, along with other third sector organisations 
including Cwmpas, the Development Trusts Association Wales and others are 
already providing a range of support to community groups, helping them to manage 
community facilities.  

Our local authorities obviously have a role to play, they are likely to be the owners of 
community assets. Community Asset Transfers (CATs) work best where the asset 
owners are involved in the process before, during and after the transfer. Welsh 
Government’s own research into CATs confirms this longer term involvement leads 
to better long-term outcomes and more successful and sustainable transfers. 

We have made a firm commitment to supporting community led developments, and 
provided a framework which includes advice, guidance and financial support. We  
believe that in Wales building on these existing measures and encouraging asset 

1 Mapping Community Assets in Wales (2020), Building Communities Trust in partnership with Wales 
Co-operative Centre, Development Trusts Association and Coalfields Regeneration Trust 

Paper 1

Pack Page 6



Local Government and Housing Committee 13 July 2022 – Evidence Paper on Community Assets 

 

2 
 

owners and community groups to work in partnership for the benefit of our 
communities will be more effective than for example new legislation.  

As part of Wales’ recovery from the pandemic and our response to the cost-of-living 
crisis, we are taking the first steps in developing a Communities Policy which will in 
turn develop new ways of working with communities. This will include working co-
productively with partners from the public, private and voluntary sectors and with 
community groups across Wales. This will help to ensure that the principles of 
community empowerment already built into our primary legislation are translated 
consistently into effective local engagement. The government will look to strengthen 
the links between this work and the community and buildings assets agenda. 

Statutory and Policy Framework in Wales 

Legal Framework: The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, sets out 
a set of principles and behaviours which guide the regulatory and policy framework 
in Wales.    

The Localism Act 2011 provided for statutory intervention on assets by conferring a 
right to bid or run community assets. Although enacted in England, in Wales the then 
Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty considered it would be more effective 
to rely on a policy framework, reflecting the more fragmented pattern of land 
ownership in Wales when compared to Scotland or England. 2  

The Local Government Act 1972 and the General Disposal Consent (Wales) Order 
2003 (GDO) provide a legal mechanism for public bodies to support community 
groups by permitting the disposal of an asset at less than market value in certain 
circumstances. Local Authorities also have powers to acquire assets from private 
owners using Compulsory Purchase powers (CPO) at market value, subject to the 
acquisition being in the public interest, amongst other conditions.   

Policy: Communities and community action are at the heart of the Programme for 
Government (PfG) commitments. Being a vital part of shaping the foundational 
economy and action on climate change. There is a strong political commitment to 
supporting community-led initiatives, cooperative housing and community land trusts.  

Support for communities wishing to acquire assets or deliver services in Wales 
comprises a complex framework of policy, guidance and funding. Support is provided 
directly by WG, devolved to Local Authorities and Health Boards, and provided via a 
number of directly funded or voluntary projects and organisations.  

With community at the core of Welsh public policy, and a wide range of assets held 
by community groups, the subject of asset transfers cuts across many policy areas, 
with strong influences from for example planning, housing and rural policy areas.    

The planning system in Wales is in itself complex but requires community 
engagement throughout planning processes. Communities are encouraged to 
actively participate in the preparation of development plans, although the degree to 
which communities actively engage in the process is not clear.3 Place plans are also 

 
2 Written Statement: Assets of Community Value measures contained within the Localism Act 2011. 
14.10.14, Lesley Griffiths 
3 Mapping Community Assets in Wales (2020), Building Communities Trust in partnership with Wales 
Co-operative Centre, Development Trusts Association and Coalfields Regeneration Trust 

Pack Page 7



Local Government and Housing Committee 13 July 2022 – Evidence Paper on Community Assets 

3 

a means of ensuring community engagement and empowerment and whilst 
discretionary, many have been adopted across Wales. 

Planning Policy Wales encourages community led housing and requires the 
provision of smaller residential sites to support Ministers’ commitments for housing 
provision, in particular affordable housing. Local Housing Market Assessments 
(LHMA), produced by local authorities to identify housing need in their area, are 
available to community groups as well as commercial developers.   

Housing policy is an area where community assets are a key element to addressing 
affordable housing supply, especially in rural and coastal areas where communities 
are in direct competition with second home owners and holiday lets. Community 
Land Trusts (CLT) and Co-operative Housing feature in policy commitments and 
there are good examples of collaborative projects where CLTs, working with 
Registered Social Landlords (RSLs), are overcoming some of the barriers identified 
to developing community housing schemes. 4 

WG Guidance: Ystadau Cymru (YC), the assets collaboration network for Wales, 
commissioned and published comprehensive guidance for all parties to guide them 
through the CAT process. YC Board membership includes representatives from the 
WLGA, One Voice Wales and WCVA.  

In addition to WG policy and guidance, some, but not all, Local Authorities have their 
own CAT policies.5 

Effectiveness of Community Asset Transfers 

Although there has been no specific evaluation of the effectiveness of CAT in Wales 
there is emerging evidence that collaboration and community-run assets strengthen 
local communities, support local economies and improve health and wellbeing. 6 7 

In March 21 we published research which broadens and deepens the evidence base 
around Community Asset Transfer in Wales.  The research gives us a Welsh specific 
view of the barriers to successful transfers from the perspective of both local 
authorities and community groups.  

Barriers and challenges are core themes and findings across research.  Scottish and 
English approaches have attempted to address some of these through legislation.  
Barriers to communities commonly cited include: 

➢ Market Value, competition with commercial entities.
➢ Lack of capacity, trust and willingness in Local Authorities.
➢ Lack of capacity within community groups, especially professional support

for acquiring and managing the asset.

4 PLANED | Pembrokeshire Community Land Trust 
5 Community Asset Transfer; research with the third sector, local authorities and community and town 
councils (WG, 2021) 
6 Mapping Community Assets in Wales (2020), Building Communities Trust in partnership with Wales 
Co-operative Centre, Development Trusts Association and Coalfields Regeneration Trust 
7 Double Award Win for Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn Town Council – 03/02/2022   

Pack Page 8

https://planed.org.uk/projects/pembrokeshire-community-land-trust/
https://newtown.org.uk/town-council/double-award-win-for-newtown-llanllwchaiarn-town-council-03-02-2022.html


Local Government and Housing Committee 13 July 2022 – Evidence Paper on Community Assets 

 

4 
 

➢ Dependency on external funding for developing business cases, obtaining 
reports, funding the acquisition and subsequent management of the asset.  

These barriers persist whether or not there is legislation in place to support 
communities to nominate assets, have the right of first refusal or the right to buy.   

A number of recommendations were made in the Welsh Government research: 

➢ LAs should adopt a more strategic approach to CAT which places the 
needs of the community front and centre.  

➢ LAs should develop a more formalised approach to engaging with 
transferees at every stage of the CAT process.  

➢ LAs, support organisations and transferees should work together to 
understand the support that is required for effective asset transfer and 
post-transfer management, what the support gaps are, and how those 
gaps can be addressed. 

➢ Transferees and LAs should ensure due diligence procedures regarding 
CAT and post-transfer arrangements are clear.  

➢ All parties should implement formal monitoring and evaluation approaches 
to both the CAT process and post-transfer period. 

 
Although dealing solely with public assets, the recommendations of this research fell 
short of recommending the introduction of legislation.  
 
The recommendation that we should work with local authorities, transferees and 
WCVA to set up a programme of knowledge sharing for successful transfers is being 
taken forward by Ystadau Cymru. 

 
One of the difficulties of measuring the effectiveness of community ownership and 
management of assets where there is a legislative framework in place is the lack of 
evaluation over a meaningful period of time. The evaluation of the Community 
Empowerment Act in Scotland 8 was inconclusive in its findings, but reiterated that 
the barriers frequently cited elsewhere in this paper remain.  

BCT study of community assets in Wales reported that transfers supported stronger 
communities, with safer, more connected communities resulting from the presence of 
an active community asset. Their study was based on 438 examples excluding 
religious buildings, sports facilities, parks and assets in public ownership. The actual 
number is likely to be considerably higher. 9 

BCT identified that community assets reflected a wide range of uses including hubs, 
pubs, cafes public toilets and shops. Whilst Welsh Government’s own research 
suggested that continuing budget pressures within Local Authorities were a key 
driver for transfer of assets, BCT found that there was a high degree of sustainability 
in the sector. 64% of the assets in their study had existed for more than 10 years, 
with 22% over 25 years.  

Positive community impact was found in relation to saving heritage assets, building 
skills and capacity, volunteering, and generating local employment. They found that 

 
8 Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015: asset transfer requests – evaluation  
9 By comparison, a review by the Scottish Government found 612 assets in public ownership in 2020 
Community Ownership in Scotland 2020 - gov.scot (www.gov.scot) 

Pack Page 9

https://www.gov.scot/publications/community-ownership-scotland-2020/pages/2/


Local Government and Housing Committee 13 July 2022 – Evidence Paper on Community Assets 

5 

641 services provided as a result of community owned assets contributed to the 
foundational economy.   

Despite reported barriers to community ownership, BCT evidence suggests that 
there are likely to be a significant proportion in assets owed by communities that 
have been acquired other than from public bodies.  

Reported backlogs within Local Authorities suggest that there is on-going demand 
for community assets, although this is likely to include assets that are at risk of 
closure due to the financial challenges Local Authorities face from austerity.10 

Finance and Support Available 

Finance: The diversity and potential of community assets identified by BTC is 
matched by a diversity of funding routes by Welsh Government. Funding is provided 
directly, in the form of capital and revenue grants, and to third sector organisations to 
enable them to provide advice and funding to community groups.   

Financial support is provided directly from WG in the form of the Community 
Facilities Programme, which has delivered grant funding in excess of £40m since 
2015. Qualifying community projects are also able to access grant funding from the 
Social Housing Grant and Land and Buildings Release Fund, where communities 
work in collaboration with registered social housing providers. 

The WCVA administer the WG funded Community Asset Loan Fund, which provides 
loans of up to £300,000 to community groups wishing to bring assets into community 
ownership.  

The Local Places for Nature Programme is to continue in 2022-23, with capital and 
revenue funding provided to third sector organisations for grants to community 
projects.  

Support for all types of community-led housing groups is provided through funding of 
£180,000 for the next three years, delivered by Cwmpas (formally the Wales Co-
operative Centre). This support is jointly funded by the Nationwide Foundation.  

Communities in Wales can also access the UK Government’s Community Ownership 
Fund which is providing £150m over four years to support community groups across 
the UK to take ownership of assets and amenities at risk of being lost.  

Support: The Ystadau Cymru CAT guidance11 is the primary source of advice 
provided by WG where the management or ownership of assets are transferred by a 
public body to a community council, third sector or community group.  

This comprehensive suite of documents guides all parties through the transfer 
process from expression of interest to completion. Sample forms are provided and 
there are case studies to assist both parties to the transaction.  

Advice and support is also available from a number of third sector organisations, 
including the WCVA, Cwmpas, Development Trusts Association (Wales), Coalfields 
Regeneration Trust, Community Led Homes and CLAS Cymru.12 

10 Community Asset Transfer; research with the third sector, local authorities and community and 
town councils (WG, 2021) 
11 Community Asset Transfer (CAT): guidance for applicants | GOV.WALES 
12 Community Land Advisory Service 

Pack Page 10

https://gov.wales/community-asset-transfer-cat-guidance-applicants


Local Government and Housing Committee 13 July 2022 – Evidence Paper on Community Assets 

6 

Although public and private land ownership details are available to the public from 
the Land Registry, WG have developed a public sector data mapping tool,  
DataMapWales.13 This contains a wealth of public data which can be viewed in map 
format. Land Registry data on publicly owned land is available for registered users to 
view online.    

Summary 

Recent research has challenged the effectiveness of existing arrangements in Wales 
and made calls to strengthen the rights of communities. Legislation, targeted funding 
and removing some of the well documented barriers faced by landowners and 
communities are cited as necessary to enable more widespread and sustainable 
transfer of assets into local community ownership.14  

The Scottish and English Governments have favoured legislation over collaboration 
by creating legal rights for community groups whilst protecting the rights of private 
owners. But private owners ultimately retain the right to choose if or when to sell the 
asset, and transfers have to be at market value.  

While unlike in England and Scotland, communities in Wales have no formal or 
informal rights in respect of privately owned assets, there are examples of 
communities acquiring assets from private sellers to protect their community value 
over commercial interests. 

Research also challenges the call for legislation15,  suggesting instead that 
communities and public bodies in Wales should be better supported to collaborate 
and overcome some of the barriers to achieving transfers. Concerns still exist around 
the level of support available, particularly in more deprived communities. Others 
suggest that some of the barriers may be overcome with less emphasis on 
ownership of assets, communities empowered to take a stewardship approach rather 
than being taking on assets they may not have the capacity or funding to sustain.16  

Welsh Ministers have made a firm commitment to supporting Community Asset 
Transfers and community led developments as evidenced in this paper by providing 
a support framework that delivers advice, guidance and finance.  

These commitments and the evidence provided in this paper point to an 
enhancement of existing measures rather than a wholesale change of approach 
would be a more effective mechanism than legislation. We look forward to receiving 
the recommendations of the Committee’s review and working constructively with the 
community and third sectors to continually review and enhance our support around 
Community Asset Transfers across Wales. 

13 Home | DataMapWales (gov.wales) 
14 IWA (20202) Our Land: Communities and Land Use Wales; Community ownership of land and 
assets: enabling the delivery of community-led housing in Wales (2022) Co-Operative Centre Wales 
15 Community Asset Transfer; research with the third sector, local authorities and community and 
town councils (WG, 2021) 
16 Skyline - Report on the feasibility study into landscape style community land stewardship in the 
south Wales Valleys Blake (2019) 

Pack Page 11

https://datamap.gov.wales/


Local Government and Housing Committee  

13 July 2022 – papers to note cover sheet 

Paper no. Issue From Action point 

Paper 2 Welsh Government 

draft budget 2023-24 

Finance 

Committee to all 

Committee Chairs 

To note 

Paper 3 Housing Ukrainian 

refugees 

Community 

Housing Cymru 

To note 

 

Pack Page 13

Agenda Item 3



Chair, Children, Young People, and Education 
Committee 
Chair, Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee  
Chair, Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, 
Sport, and International Relations Committee 
Chair, Economy, Trade, and Rural Affairs Committee 
Chair, Equality and Social Justice Committee  
Chair, Health and Social Care Committee 
Chair, Legislation, Justice and Constitution Committee 
Chair, Local Government and Housing Committee

6 July 2022 

Welsh Government Draft Budget 2023-24 

Dear Committee Chairs 

Budget Engagement 

On 11 April 2022, I wrote to notify you of the Finance Committee’s programme of 
engagement for its scrutiny of the forthcoming Welsh Government’s Draft 
Budget 2023-24. The Committee has now completed its three engagement 
strands: 

▪ a stakeholder event in Llanhilleth Miners’ Institute;
▪ a workshop with member of the Welsh Youth Parliament; and
▪ focus groups with the Welsh public.

An engagement report has been published which summarises the responses we 
received during our engagement work. 

Paper 2

Pack Page 14

Agenda Item 3.1

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s125027/Letter%20from%20the%20Chair%20of%20the%20Finance%20Committee%20-%2011%20April%202022.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s127388/Welsh%20Government%20Draft%20Budget%202023-24%20Finance%20Committee%20Summary%20Engagement%20Report%20-%20July%202022.pdf


 

 

Plenary Debate on the Welsh Government’s Spending Priorities 

On 13 July, the Committee will hold a Plenary debate on the Welsh Government’s 
Spending Priorities and the engagement report referred to above will be 
included as a supporting document for the debate.  

We believe this debate allows the best opportunity for Members to influence the 
Welsh Government’s spending priorities prior to the formulation of the draft 
budget in the autumn and I would encourage Committees to contribute to this 
important debate and press for action in their areas of interest. 

Timetable and approach to budget scrutiny 

Following the announcement by the UK Government last year of a multi-year 
settlement, the Committee had hoped that we would return to a ‘normal 
budget’ process this year, after several years of curtailed scrutiny. However, the 
Minister for Finance and Local Government has written to me to explain that the 
lack of certainty over the significant pressures facing the Welsh Government’s 
spending plans will not be resolved until the Welsh Government knows whether 
its settlement will change in any UK Autumn Fiscal event.  

The Minister sought the Committee’s view on a preferred timetable for 
publishing of the draft budget, with our preferred option being that it is 
published in October to enable eight weeks for scrutiny with the final budget 
being published in December. 

The Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd has now written to 
the Business Committee to notify it that the Welsh Government intends to 
publish the outline and detailed draft budgets together by 13 December at the 
latest or within four weeks of the UK Government’s autumn budget. The 
Trefnydd also confirmed that she will provide an updated budget timetable in 
the autumn term, as soon as details of the UK fiscal event is known..  

Given that the publication of the draft budget will be delayed again this year, the 
Committee’s call for evidence will take place in September. I will write to you 
again with further information on the consultation, and any revisions to the 
budget timetable, in due course. 

Budget Process Protocol 

The Budget Process Protocol between the Senedd and the Welsh Government 
has been in place since 2017. The protocol sets out an understanding between 
the Finance Committee and the Welsh Government on the administrative 
arrangements for the scrutiny of the annual draft budget and other related 
budgetary matters.  

Pack Page 15

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s126458/Letter%20from%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20regarding%20the%20timetable%20for%20the%20Welsh%20Gove.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s126707/Letter%20to%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20Timetable%20for%20publishing%20the%20draft%20and%20fina.pdfhttps:/business.senedd.wales/documents/s126707/Letter%20to%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20Timetable%20for%20publishing%20the%20draft%20and%20fina.pdfhttps:/business.senedd.wales/documents/s126707/Letter%20to%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20Timetable%20for%20publishing%20the%20draft%20and%20fina.pdfhttps:/business.senedd.wales/documents/s126707/Letter%20to%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20Timetable%20for%20publishing%20the%20draft%20and%20fina.pdfhttps:/business.senedd.wales/documents/s126707/Letter%20to%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20Timetable%20for%20publishing%20the%20draft%20and%20fina.pdfhttps:/business.senedd.wales/documents/s126707/Letter%20to%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20Timetable%20for%20publishing%20the%20draft%20and%20fina.pdfhttps:/business.senedd.wales/documents/s126707/Letter%20to%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20Timetable%20for%20publishing%20the%20draft%20and%20fina.pdfhttps:/business.senedd.wales/documents/s126707/Letter%20to%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20Timetable%20for%20publishing%20the%20draft%20and%20fina.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s126954/Letter%20from%20the%20Minister%20for%20Rural%20Affairs%20and%20North%20Wales%20and%20Trefnydd%20Budget%20timetable%202023-24%20-.pdf
https://senedd.wales/laid%20documents/gen-ld11075/gen-ld11075-e.pdf#:~:text=The%20Protocol%20sets%20out%20an%20understanding%20between%20the,annual%20draft%20budget%20and%20other%20related%20budgetary%20matters.


 

This is the fourth consecutive year where the two-stage budget process has not 
been used and scrutiny has been curtailed due to “exceptional circumstances”. 
Whilst we acknowledge that delays have been due to the uncertainty of funding 
from the UK Government, a curtailed budget processes is becoming 
commonplace and, as Chair, I do not wish to have similar discussions around 
timetabling issues year upon year. 

For this reason, I have asked the Minister to commit to a review of the budget 
process protocol ahead of the budget round for 2024-25 to ensure it remains fit-
for-purpose.   

If you have any comments on your experience of your Committee’s budget 
scrutiny, I would be grateful to hear from you. 

If you have any questions about any aspect of the draft budget process, please 
feel free to contact me or the Clerk to the Finance Committee, Owain Roberts, 
0300 200 6388, seneddfinance@senedd.wales.  

Yours sincerely 

 

  

Peredur Owen Griffiths MS 
Chair of the Finance Committee 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 16



www.chcymru.org.uk      1 / 2 

About CHC and HAs 

Community Housing Cymru is the voice of housing associations in Wales. We represent and support 36 
housing associations in Wales. Our members provide almost 165,000 homes to 10% of the Welsh 
population. 

Sector engagement with Welsh government 

As reports began to emerge regarding the Russian invasion of Ukraine, Community Housing Cymru 
contacted the Home Office and Welsh government to offer sector engagement in providing homes for 
refugees.  

Welsh government officials responded quickly, meeting with senior Housing associations leaders to brief 
them and engage them in scoping a wide range of housing options. Housing associations across Wales 
acted swiftly to nominate representatives to take part in Welsh government working groups. These groups 
designed the approach to ensuring that the homes offered to refugees from Ukraine were of sufficiently high 
quality and explored innovative solutions to increasing housing stock.  

Existing challenges 

During their initial briefing with housing association leaders, Welsh government officials acknowledged the 
huge challenges that the sector is already seeking to address. These challenges include: 

 ongoing work to find homes for people that are currently in temporary accommodation in Wales;

 resettlement of refugees from Afghanistan that arrived in Wales last year; and

 the impact of the cost of living crisis and supply chain disruption on housing development.

The challenges in finding homes for people from Ukraine remain acute, but housing associations have 
shown that they can act quickly and with tenacity to find solutions and that they are committed to supporting 
Wales’ approach as a Nation of Sanctuary. 

Housing association involvement 

This is not an exhaustive list of HA involvement in providing homes to people from Ukraine. It is an 
overview of the work that CHC is aware of at this time and is designed to give an indication of the type of 
support that housing associations have provided. As this work is still ongoing, CHC has not yet undertaken 
research to determine the full scale of the support provided. CHC would be happy to inform any further 
work by the Committee in future to understand the way in which housing has been provided to refugees, 
and how this is included within an overall strategy to tackle the housing crisis.  

Increasing the supply of available housing 

In order to help to provide housing for people travelling from Ukraine, housing associations mobilised to 
bring stock up to standard quickly and find innovative ways to develop new housing options. This has 
included re-development and conversion of properties to provide greater capacity, for example through loft 
extensions.  

They have been supported in this by the Welsh government’s Transitional Accommodation Capital Fund. 
This fund was launched at the end of April 2022 and is designed to provide funding to support the increase 

Papur 3 / Paper 3

Pack Page 17

Agenda Item 3.2

http://www.chcymru.org.uk/


 

www.chcymru.org.uk                2 / 2 

of housing capacity, seeking through refurbishment or remodelling of void properties to support demands. 
The grant is conditional upon the property being used to support the movement of people from temporary 
accommodation and deliver Ukraine response. 

Support for the development and delivery of the National Hosting Scheme 

Housing associations also took part in Welsh government working groups which informed the approach 
taken in Wales to the National Hosting Scheme. It should be noted that this scheme in Wales, along with 
much of the work to welcome refugees from Ukraine in Wales, has been affected by the overall approach 
taken by the UK government. Now that the hosting scheme is in operation, Welsh government has worked 
with CHC to coordinate assistance from housing associations in Wales to support local authorities in 
specific areas in its delivery, for example through support for property checks for potential hosts.  

Welcome Centres 

In some cases, housing associations have been directly involved in the management of Welcome Centres. 
CHC is working with a housing association in North Wales to put together a case study, which will be 
submitted as Appendix A to this response. 

We understand that one of the most acute challenges at this stage is to support people to match 
successfully and secure move on accommodation from the Welcome Centres. Housing associations have 
taken part in early discussions about increasing staff capacity at Centres in order to help match people from 
Ukraine to potential hosts.  

Strategic priorities 

It would be very valuable for Welsh government to ensure that learning from the challenges and innovations 
that have been identified during the current crisis is taken into account within their overarching strategy for 
ending homelessness and for increasing the supply of social housing.  

It is critical that we explore the full range of options for increasing the supply of high quality, safe and 
affordable homes that are available to people in Wales, and to those seeking sanctuary. The Transitional 
Accommodation Capital Fund is a pragmatic response to the challenges we face. However, the approaches 
it develops may have wider applicability given ongoing pressures on temporary accommodation. Thought 
should be given to mainstreaming this approach to maximise the use of existing housing.  

In such a fast moving and complex situation coordination and clarity is key. This is especially important for 
partners, such as housing associations who may be at the periphery of discussions. We have been grateful 
for the Welsh Government’s willingness to engage with the sector and would encourage clear coordination 
and communication mechanisms throughout implementation.  

For more information, please contact Laura-Courtney@chcymru.org.uk 

 

Pack Page 18

http://www.chcymru.org.uk/


Document is Restricted

Pack Page 19

Agenda Item 5By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 21

Agenda Item 6By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 64

Agenda Item 7 By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 70

By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 74

By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Inquiry into community assets - evidence session 4: Minister for Climate Change and the Minister for Finance and Local Government
	Paper 1

	3 Papers to note
	3.1 Letter from the Finance Committee to all Committee Chairs in relation to the Welsh Government Draft Budget 2023-24
	3.2 Written submission from Community Housing Cymru in relation to housing Ukrainian refugees
	5 Inquiry into community assets - consideration of the evidence received under item 2 and key issues
	6 Inquiry into the provision of sites for Gypsy, Roma and Travellers - consideration of the draft report
	7 Consideration of the forward work programme for the autumn term 2022
	Annexe 1
	Annexe 2




